
Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

All Members of the Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission are requested to 
attend the meeting of the Commission to be held as follows:

Monday, 5th February, 2018 

7.00 pm

Room 103, Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Tim Shields
Chief Executive, London Borough of Hackney

Contact:
Tracey Anderson
 020 8356 3312
 tracey.anderson@hackney.gov.uk

Members: Cllr Anna-Joy Rickard (Chair), Cllr Mete Coban (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr Patrick Moule, Cllr Deniz Oguzkanli, Cllr M Can Ozsen, 
Cllr Clare Potter and Cllr Nick Sharman

Agenda

ALL MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Urgent Items / Order of Business 

3 Declarations of Interest 

4 Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 18)

5 Economic and Community Development Board Update (Pages 19 - 20)

6 Future World of Work and Skills - Event Notes (Pages 21 - 46)

7 Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission 2017/18 
Work Programme 

(Pages 47 - 52)

8 Any Other Business 



Access and Information

Getting to the Town Hall

For a map of how to find the Town Hall, please visit the council’s website 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm or contact the Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer using the details provided on the front cover of this agenda.

Accessibility

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.

Induction loop facilities are available in the Assembly Halls and the Council Chamber. 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance.

Further Information about the Commission

If you would like any more information about the Scrutiny 
Commission, including the membership details, meeting dates 
and previous reviews, please visit the website or use this QR 
Code (accessible via phone or tablet ‘app’)
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/individual-scrutiny-commissions-
governance-and-resources.htm 

Public Involvement and Recording
Scrutiny meetings are held in public, rather than being public meetings. This means 
that whilst residents and press are welcome to attend, they can only ask questions at 
the discretion of the Chair. For further information relating to public access to 
information, please see Part 4 of the council’s constitution, available at 
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm or by contacting Governance 
Services (020 8356 3503)

Rights of Press and Public to Report on Meetings

Where a meeting of the Council and its committees are open to the public, the press 
and public are welcome to report on meetings of the Council and its committees, 
through any audio, visual or written methods and may use digital and social media 
providing they do not disturb the conduct of the meeting and providing that the 
person reporting or providing the commentary is present at the meeting.

Those wishing to film, photograph or audio record a meeting are asked to notify the 
Council’s Monitoring Officer by noon on the day of the meeting, if possible, or any 
time prior to the start of the meeting or notify the Chair at the start of the meeting.

http://www.hackney.gov.uk/contact-us.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/individual-scrutiny-commissions-governance-and-resources.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/individual-scrutiny-commissions-governance-and-resources.htm
http://www.hackney.gov.uk/l-gm-constitution.htm


The Monitoring Officer, or the Chair of the meeting, may designate a set area from 
which all recording must take place at a meeting.

The Council will endeavour to provide reasonable space and seating to view, hear 
and record the meeting.  If those intending to record a meeting require any other 
reasonable facilities, notice should be given to the Monitoring Officer in advance of 
the meeting and will only be provided if practicable to do so.

The Chair shall have discretion to regulate the behaviour of all those present 
recording a meeting in the interests of the efficient conduct of the meeting.   Anyone 
acting in a disruptive manner may be required by the Chair to cease recording or 
may be excluded from the meeting. Disruptive behaviour may include: moving from 
any designated recording area; causing excessive noise; intrusive lighting; 
interrupting the meeting; or filming members of the public who have asked not to be 
filmed.

All those visually recording a meeting are requested to only focus on recording 
councillors, officers and the public who are directly involved in the conduct of the 
meeting.  The Chair of the meeting will ask any members of the public present if they 
have objections to being visually recorded.  Those visually recording a meeting are 
asked to respect the wishes of those who do not wish to be filmed or photographed.   
Failure by someone recording a meeting to respect the wishes of those who do not 
wish to be filmed and photographed may result in the Chair instructing them to cease 
recording or in their exclusion from the meeting.

If a meeting passes a motion to exclude the press and public then in order to 
consider confidential or exempt information, all recording must cease and all 
recording equipment must be removed from the meeting room. The press and public 
are not permitted to use any means which might enable them to see or hear the 
proceedings whilst they are excluded from a meeting and confidential or exempt 
information is under consideration.

Providing oral commentary during a meeting is not permitted.



This page is intentionally left blank



Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

5th February 2018

Minutes of the previous meeting and Matters 
Arising

Item No

4
OUTLINE

Attached are the draft minutes for the meeting on 14th December 2017.

ACTION

The Commission is requested to agree the minutes and note any matters 
arising. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of the 
proceedings of the  held 
at Hackney Town Hall, 
Mare Street, London E8 
1EA

Minutes of the proceedings of 
the Working in Hackney 
Scrutiny Commission held at
Hackney Town Hall, Mare 
Street, London E8 1EA

London Borough of Hackney
Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission 
Municipal Year 2017/18
Date of Meeting Thursday, 14th December, 2017

Chair Councillor Anna-Joy Rickard

Councillors in 
Attendance

Cllr Patrick Moule, Cllr Deniz Oguzkanli, 
Cllr M Can Ozsen and Cllr Nick Sharman

Apologies: Cllr Clare Potter

Officers In Attendance Paul Horobin (Head of Corporate Programmes) and 
Andrew Munk (Head of Employment and Skills)

Other People in 
Attendance

Councillor Guy Nicholson (Cabinet Member for Planning, 
Business and Investment) and Councillor Carole 
Williams (Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and 
Human Resources)

Members of the Public

Officer Contact: Tracey Anderson
 020 8356 3312
 tracey.anderson@hackney.gov.uk

 Councillor Anna-Joy Rickard in the Chair

1 Apologies for Absence 

1.1 Apologies for absence from Cllr Potter.

2 Urgent Items / Order of Business 

2.1 None.

3 Declarations of Interest 

3.1 None.

Page 3



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

4 Minutes of Previous Meeting 

4.1 Minutes of the meeting held on 18th September 2017 were agreed.

RESOLVED Minutes were approved.

5 Cabinet Member Question Time - Employment Skills and Human Resources 

5.1 The Chair welcomed to the meeting Cllr Carole Williams, Cabinet Member for 
Employment, Skills and Human Resources from London Borough of Hackney.  
Also in attendance for the discussion was Andrew Munk, Head of Employment 
and Skills and Paul Horobin, Head of Corporate Programmes, Corporate 
Strategy.

5.2 The Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and Human Resources was asked 
to attend the meeting to answer the following questions submitted in advance:

1. Jobs strategy and the assessment of success.
2. Evaluation, measures and identification of success
3. Key commitments and deliverables by May 2018.

5.3 The Cabinet Member highlighted that this is first time the Hackney Executive has 
appointed a Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and Human Resources.  
Highlighting this is the first cabinet question time session focused on 
employment and skills.  Demonstrating this is an area of work that is important to 
the Council.

5.4 Over the past 12 months the Cabinet Member has focused on monitoring the 
performance and delivery of the Mayoral commitments.

5.5 The Council has been expanding ways into work to ensure job and businesses 
provide good work for local people.

5.6 Establishing a local corporate apprenticeship scheme across the council and 
delivering Hackney 100.  The Hackney 100 is a relaunch of a programme 
previously run by the Council.

5.7 The Council continues to work with government and employers to become an 
accredited Timewise council.  The timewise accreditation is in relation to 
employment within the council.  This means the Council has to demonstrate it is 
a good employer.

5.8 The Council become an accredited London living wage employer.  This has an 
external focus but looks at whether the Council is a good employer and how it is 
building relationships with other businesses in the borough to become good 
employers.

5.9 To recap as a minimum over the last 12 months the Cabinet Member has been 
reviewing the delivery on these commitments to ensure the Council is delivering 
to the timelines stipulated.

Page 4



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

5.10 In reference to the indicators of success there are a range of indicators that the 
council is using.  It was highlighted for the corporate apprenticeship programme 
the council is using a dashboard that looks at the total number of apprentices; 
apprentices for 2017/18; total number of starts in 2017/18; total number of 
apprentices leaving the programme and the number who completed the 
qualifications and progressed into jobs within the council.  In addition the council 
has reviewed the number of application they processed for the corporate 
programme.  This programme was extremely popular.

5.11 There was the relaunch of the Hackney 100 programme.  The commitment was 
to recruit 100 in advance of 2017/18.  They currently have 57 confirmed 
placements with external organisations and 17 within the council.

5.12 In 2018/19 the Council will launch an employment programme.  This is aimed at 
increasing access to apprenticeships in Hackney for 16-24 year olds with 
barriers to employment.  The criteria for the measure of success will be the 
number of young people with special educational needs, care leavers and young 
people who are Not in education, employment or training (NEETs) as well as the 
number of participants that progress into employment on completion of the 
scheme; with a particular focus on council apprenticeships.

5.13 In relation to opportunity hub they have a suite of indicators that include a range 
measures like participants progression pathways, equalities monitoring, looking 
at those economically active and those economically inactive both out of work 
and in work but on low income, under 25s, care leavers, a disability or health 
conditions, gender and over 50s.

5.14 In relation to the manifesto commitments for the portfolio area the Cabinet 
Member is prioritising the following by May 2018:
 Full reaccreditation as a Timewise employer this year.  Already received 

accreditation as a Timewise employer in November 2016.
 Full reaccreditation as a London Living Wage Council.  Already accredited as 

a London Living Wage Council.
 Will be continuing to focus on expanding the ways into work and promoting 

and securing apprenticeships.
 Delivering the Opportunity Hub on the Gascoyne 2 estate. 
 The creations of a local pre-employment scheme and apprenticeship 

network.

5.15 Questions Answers and Discussion
(i) Members commented the responses outlined strong delivery of initiatives 

and outputs but what they wanted was further information on the overall 
strategic intention and key problems the council is trying to address with 
the strategy?

(ii) Members commented in their view there needs to be a focus on ensuring 
young people in Hackney have access and the skills to move into the range 
of opportunities opening up in the borough.  From Members work at 
Hackney Wick they noticed 2 barriers 
a) The sense of horizons for young people and what they want to do.  
Members commented the Council should be in a strong position now 
because of the excellent school results being achieved in Hackney and 

Page 5



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
what they have to offer.  However the sense is young people still have 
restricted horizon.  
b) In relation to employers Member commented there is a certain amount of 
goodwill and a willingness from employers to be more open but there has 
not been a significant difference in their recruitment practices / processes 
to provide young people with the information about how to get to that 
position or the job / role.  Members wanted to know the Council’s strategy 
and approach to dealing with this and the outcomes they expect to see?

(iii) Members also commented on the gap between people who have fallen out 
of the employment market by a significant margin and despite the outreach 
efforts still are a long way from the job market.  How do we build the ladder 
from the people who are so far from the labour market to build their 
confidence and skills to access employment?

Members summarised the 2 key issues are: 
 long term unemployed particularly among older people
 How the council will be measuring the outcomes as opposed to the 

outputs outlined in the initial response?

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR and the officers 
present advised the questions related to the changing skills requirements.  The 
labour market is changing rapidly.  The Council’s Economic and Community 
Development Board has been discussing what its priorities will be in relation to 
this and how they will deliver them in the short to medium term.  They are 
concerned about impact of the changes and what it will mean for Hackney’s 
residents.  Currently the trend is a growing number of highly skilled and highly 
paid jobs – these jobs are in hackney too - and also a growing service sector.  
The Council is continually considering what this means for Hackney in terms of 
long term inequalities and how are they are going to change or drive this.  The 
Council also considers what this means for the protected characteristic groups.

The officer explained one of the interesting points outlined at the WiH event by 
the external speakers was the debate that opened up - but this debate was not 
conclusive – about whether skills shape the job opportunities or if the jobs 
opportunities have to be responded to by the skills.  Therefore if the Council 
upskills the local workforce to a level 3 or level 4 the job opportunities opening up 
will cater to those skills and that would indicate that the jobs created tend to 
reflect the workforce abilities.  Alternatively it could be that there is a gap in jobs 
at indicated at the moment.  The officer advised there does not seem to be a 
conclusive view on this and that makes it very difficult from a strategic stand 
point to know what actions will work.  Nevertheless there is still a need to focus 
on getting people skilled up from a level 1 & level 2 up to level 3 & level 4. 

In terms of the long terms issues particularly for the older cohort the evidence is 
showing the older cohort in the borough tend to have some of the weaker skill 
sets.  They will require some significant work around skills development and in 
some ways they find it harder to access development opportunities.  However, 
the Council is starting to understand there is some core skills they need to be 
promoting e.g. digital skills across the piece.

One key issue that was highlighted at the event was the hollowing out in the 
economy and how the high paid jobs seem to be supported by low paid jobs in 

Page 6



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
the service sector - that seems to be the trend for London’s economy.  One of 
the key challenges for Hackney Council will be how they can get people to 
achieve some level of economic success in the London labour market if they are 
not at the high end labour market.  This is a London wide problem rather than a 
local problem.

(iv) Members commented Hackney is attracting employers with high level jobs 
and the schools are now producing young people who are capable and 
have the qualifications for these jobs.  The challenge as Members see it is 
that employers tend to use their traditional recruitment patterns.  Members 
enquired what the Council is doing to get the schools and employers to 
consider Hackney residents.  Are we measuring the opportunities Hackney 
residents are getting?  

(v) Members acknowledge the Council’s work and programmes are being 
measured but queried if the Council has a sense of whether Hackney 
residents are getting jobs.  Can we measure if Hackney people are getting 
the jobs?

In response the Commission was informed one of the difficulties is the level of 
data available from ONS.  In terms of relating people to location and work there 
is not this level of data.  Generally the Council would be better advised to help 
people to get jobs in the London wide economy because there is a breath of job 
opportunities in the different sectors.  A growing sector is tourism.  One of the 
benefits that come out of promoting schemes like Hackney 100 and 
apprenticeships is that it opens employers’ eyes to the capabilities of local 
people and opens doors for people to go into those work places.  The difficulty 
will be measuring the change.  

(vi) Members asked the following:
a) What are the growing industries?
b) If the Council has knowledge of the future opportunities?  
c) The percentage of unemployment for Hackney?

In response The Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR informed:
 Economically active as a percentage of the total population in Hackney is 

54.7%
 Unemployed is 3.9%
 Total working population is 197,000.

In response to the growing industries there is some knowledge about growth 
sectors such as STEAM but the challenge is when analysing the trend data you 
are looking at categories - used at a national level - and increasing seeing jobs 
that are not necessarily representative of the categories used; therefore not 
giving a true reflection of the jobs available.

The national definition for example for legal not only includes lawyers but people 
who work in the legal profession.  These broad categories also pick up a range 
of jobs in the creative industries that are thriving in the borough’s economy.  In 
essence it picks up a broad range of jobs operating in one category.  The local 
economy in Hackney is not just growing in STEM but also has a thriving STEAM 
sector too - more art led employers.  That means locally we not only need 

Page 7



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
science led educational providers but also around the arts too.  Therefore 
needing vocational skills in both spheres as well as academic qualifications.

The officers highlighted when they looked at the creative category and started to 
drill down on the categories.  They noted the largest growth was hairdressing 
and second was betting shops.  If the Council was to direct people into a creative 
job they need to be aware of the types of job they are directing people towards 
because the category can be misleading.  This provides difficulty in following the 
trends.  What the Council has noticed is they have categories that are becoming 
meaningless as jobs evolve.

The challenge for inequalities is across both sectors with winners and losers of 
STEM and STEAM with gender and ethnicity gaps.  Some of the businesses are 
not diverse and as we see from the global picture this is not going to be easy to 
resolve.  The challenge for the Council is how they work with these employers 
and improve their diversity whilst also opening up opportunities for Hackney 
residents.  The Cabinet Member agreed many of these employers look to their 
own networks and people within their sphere.  This is a national and international 
issue.

(vii) Members referred to the aging population and the growing health care 
sector as a result.  Members enquired if the Council has any knowledge 
and statistics that highlights the number of people needed for the growing 
sectors e.g. health care, childcare etc?

In response the Cabinet Member for Employment, Skills and HR and the officers 
explained it was difficult to predict what was going to happen in the labour 
market and identify where those jobs will be to match that to the skills agenda.  
The other factor was Brexit and how this will impact on the labour market too.  It 
is becoming extremely difficult to predict.  This was the reason for the gap 
between what is on offer at school and university compare to what businesses 
want and require.  There is always a bit of a skills gap.

(viii) Members asked for some examples of good practice where councils are 
leading the way in job brokerage and facilitating local employers which 
results in job opportunities for local people excluding the planning process 
and the Council’s supply chain?

In response the officer advised the overarching strategy aim for jobs is: 
a) Quality of jobs
b) Engaging employers.

The discussions the Council is having with employers is about a range of 
different jobs not just entry level jobs.  The conversation with employers’ centres 
around, paid work placement, apprenticeships, progress routes through the 
organisation, working with schools to prepare young people with the skills for the 
future.  The Commission was informed the team has been restructured to enable 
that strategic relationship development.  They are having these conversations 
with Amazon and Here East.

The complexity with this approach means it does not provide quick wins for jobs 
and does not enable the Council to immediately demonstrate the number of jobs 

Page 8



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
they are getting in those organisations.  This approach is more strategic 
outcomes focused.  

Following a full resourced employer engagement team a key focus for 2018 will 
be the creation of sector based networks one focused on construction, creative & 
digital, hospitality and retail.  A big part of this work will be co-designing thus the 
Council giving employers their input into what it thinks apprenticeships should 
look like in the tech sector and offering support to navigate the apprenticeship 
levy.  The Council has strong influence because it has created tech 
apprenticeships for the Council.  It was highlighted there are other boroughs that 
will focus on numbers but these are targeting low level jobs.  Hackney is not 
taking this approach. 

The Cabinet Member pointed out it is not just about entry level jobs but relates 
back to the Mayoral commitment following concerns raised about young people 
returning to Hackney and not finding employment.  There are many issues 
surrounding access to the labour market so the Council is refocusing its 
approach and the action taken.

As a follow up Members enquired about the number of staff in the team 
working in this area, taking into consideration the number of small 
businesses in the borough, and enquired about methods the team will use 
to facilitate job brokerage.

In response the Commission was informed there will be a senior programme 
manager to lead the team, supported by 2 employment officers, in addition there 
are other officers within the team leading on areas like work placements.  Overall 
there will be approximately 5 people working on relationship building.  

It was pointed out the Economic Regeneration Team also cover some aspects of 
this work.  

In response to the methods used, there are numerous methods and these will 
involve using the full range of the Council’s leverage and networks e.g. Landing 
Pad.  There will be a number of approaches taken but principally this is centre 
around using the Council’s leverage and networks.

The Cabinet Member advised the Council has discussed collating numbers but 
have recognised if they want to work with people furthest from the job market this 
will take more time and resources.  Therefore they may not produce the numbers 
considered to illustrate success.  There is a balance to be struck.  

(ix) Members asked for some indications of outcomes per pound invested and 
how the data will be collate if is not readily available?  We need to reassure 
residents the money being spent is good value.  The example was give of 
the spend on the Olympics being unable to demonstrate the benefits to 
Hackney residents but rather being translated in house and land values.  
Currently the Council does not provide this benefit information.  

In response officers advised devolution is an opportunity to get that challenge 
and figures for Hackney for example the new devolved Health programme will 
provide some accountability to local authorities.  They will be able to ask those 
questions to provide the challenge Members are asking about.  

Page 9



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

The Chair pointed out Members hear about the various programmes and the 
strategy but the Members advised there needed to be a clear message delivered 
to the public that explained the strategy being delivered.

6 Cabinet Member Question Time - Planning, Business and Investment 

6.1 The Chair welcomed to the meeting Cllr Nicholson, Cabinet Member for Planning, 
Business and Investment from London Borough of Hackney.  Also in attendance 
for the discussion was Paul Horobin, Head of Corporate Programmes.

6.2 The Cabinet Member for Planning, Business and Investment was asked to attend 
the meeting to answer the following questions submitted in advance:

1. Economic strategy and balance of job types
2. Benefits of large corporate organisations moving into the borough and 

managing reputational risk.
3. Evaluation, measures and identification of success 
4. Key commitments and deliverables by May 2018.

6.3 The Cabinet Member reminded the Commission the arrival of a new Mayor reset 
the agenda for the Executive.  In his role he has been setting the foundations for 
the new priorities so that after the local elections in May 2018 the Executive 
appointed can hit the ground running with established policies.

6.4 In response to job types there is an element of reacting to the external changes 
that materialise in the economy by using policy to react.  There is an element of 
this in economic development and across planning too.  In terms of work and work 
spaces The Council’s current reaction to the economy is currently out to 
consultation (The Local Plan).  Elements of that consultation include proposals to 
protect light industrial work space to the north of the borough.  To ensure there is 
no further erosion of industrial space in the borough.

6.5 In terms of work space the Council is currently considering bring forward 
affordable work space change.  This predominantly focuses on the south of the 
borough.  

6.6 Currently Hackney is the most progressive borough bringing a supply of affordable 
workspace through new developments.  Currently developments work on the 
principle of 80% of market value.  However when you apply this to areas like 
Shoreditch it does not provide what would be considered an affordable rent.  
Therefore the Council proposes in the Local Plan to implement 40% of market 
value.  Bring forth a supply of affordable work spaces through new developments.  
This was cited as an example of the policy intervention the council has the ability 
to implement.  Notwithstanding the intention to make this provision available to 
small businesses the Council cannot determine the sectors who will move into 
those workspaces.  This will be dependent on relationship management and 
building good relations with the business community.  This is key to the delivery of 
the Mayor’s objectives.

Page 10



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
6.7 In relation to further investment this is investment outside the planning system (the 

section 106 obligation) into the wider community on a regular basis.  In some 
instances this could be investment into a new school or it could be financing 
internships through a sponsorship process.  But increasingly there is pressure on 
public finances to deliver on infrastructure like for example new stations.  This puts 
a greater need on the development of relationships with businesses so that capital 
can be raised within the borough.

6.8 There is a role for the council to deliver on those relationships this is not just 
political but through the corporate side of the council too.  Some of this work 
involves officers having a dialogue and engagement with businesses as outlined 
earlier in the previous CQT discussion.  It is also about repositioning the council 
as a provider of services in its relationship with local businesses irrespective of 
size and sector.  This can mean going out to broker a relationship between the 
council and local businesses so that businesses will want to invest in the council 
and the wider community.  

6.9 The Council needs to consider what it is offering local businesses especially within 
the context of delivery of regulatory services.  Regulatory services vary from 
refuse collection through to environmental services (trading services).  The 
Council wants to create a single point of contact for local businesses by talking to 
business about the delivery of services just as they do with residents.  This work 
will go some way towards supporting the development of relationships with the 
business community and the council.  Moving relationships into a positive space 
will enable that message to spread quickly.  Hopefully this will make it easier for 
Council officers to then approach businesses about the bigger strategic 
discussions like placements, apprenticeships etc.

6.10 In relation to the concerns raised about Amazon it is incumbent on the council to 
find out what is going on.  The Council is aware of the media reports and notes 
they are not completely accurate.  The Council has taken the stance of visiting 
premises to learn more about how it operates rather than taking second hand 
reports as completely factual.  This spotlights the importance of relationship 
development and relationship management.  The Council will clearly outline the 
practices it expects businesses to exhibit.

6.11 The Council should not just fixate on Amazon but also consider all the other 
international businesses that are increasingly becoming based in the borough and 
think about what they all should be offering and investing into the council and the 
wider community.

6.12 There is a lot of work to be completed for delivery of the Mayoral commitments not 
just up to May 2018 but beyond too.  

6.13 The Council is restructuring and employing a new head of service to help drive 
this agenda forward.  Having a head of service will help to provide that leadership 
to support the other strands of work such as the economic development, 
internationalism, the Landing Pad and the Launch Pad.  Some of these areas of 
work will be delivered before and after May 2018.

6.14 Questions, Answers and Discussion
(i) Members agreed with the statement that the council should take things as 

they find it and not what is reported in the media.  

Page 11



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

(ii) Members cautioned the council against developing a ‘special’ relationship 
with Amazon.  Members urged the Council to be careful not to allow any big 
employer to treat their employees badly.  Members referred to the Council’s 
statutory powers and suggested they should be used where necessarily and 
queried if the Council could use its statutory powers to ensure no poor 
employee practices by businesses?  However they did not want the Council 
to be seen as a threat to local businesses.

(iii) Members enquired if big companies moving into the Borough could be 
made to fulfil their social responsibility under a Section 106 agreement 
through planning.

In response to the points above the Cabinet Member for Planning, Business and 
Investment advised the Executive would not ignore bad practice.  The Council’s 
Executive needs to communicate a crystal clear message about what it expects 
from employers as well as leading by example.  This could be through being a 
LLW employer, access to opportunities and progressing in the work place.  This 
communications should go out to all businesses in the borough irrespective of 
their size or sector.  Unfortunately the council cannot force employers to comply 
but through relationship building and management – this is why relationship 
building is so important –have those conversation with employers. 

It was confirmed section 106 does get used when a business put forward a 
development.   If for example Amazon did apply to build a large building the 
council can apply the section 106 agreement but this agreement has no authority 
to demand their workforce is paid the London Living Wage.  However, it does 
cover job output, access to employment, initiatives of the scheme and the 
resources to implement the build.

The Cabinet Members suggested the Commission could outline in its report the 
Council has a set of values for business operation.

(iv) Members commented they were not hearing a clear set of ideas outlining 
where the council was going?  Members queried if represented a hole where 
the economic strategy should be? 

(v) Members referred to the previous industrial strategy for London and more 
recently Manchester City Council performing an in-depth economic analysis 
of various sectors operating nationally and internationally in the city and 
used this as a map to guide their interventions.  

(vi) Members suggested the council should seek to use all its powers for 
planning, employment support etc. to bring about change.  A recent report 
about the planning service in Hackney, reported to the Audit Committee, 
implied it was a reactive service.  Members were pleased to hear that the 
planning service would be pushing back on industrial space.  What the 
council should move towards now is saying what it wants to see in that 
industrial space.

In response to the comments and queries above the Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Business and Investment advised they recognise there is large number 
of activities, but if the silos are threaded together they will have more influence; 

Page 12



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
whether that is curating the economy or through developments and considering 
access. 

The information described sit in one place within the council and that is the 
Economic Community Development Board (ECDB).  This Board is where the 
Council officers – from all relevant departments - and the Executive Members 
come together to consider the points Members have just outlined.  He agreed with 
the points expressed about what the strategy might or should articulate and 
commented the Commission’s views would be helpful to officers in shaping the 
strategy.  The Cabinet Member explained the strategy work is currently in 
progress and they are trying to get the parts together to shape the content.  He 
recommended the Commission feeds into the current strategy development work.  
The Cabinet Member explained he has been trying to get all the areas ready and 
pointed out the information to date is very high level - at a regional and sub-
regional level.

The Head of Corporate Programmes explained the challenge is twofold a) to get 
coherence across the council, to make sure they have a consistent approach for 
all the economic activity work and that it’s in a coherent direction.  The currently 
challenge with the strategy work, is the strategy has elements of certainty and 
uncertainty that underpin it.  The Council has an understanding of the best jobs 
and sectors they would like for their residents and has the ability to point its self in 
that direction.  The Council is beginning to understand what sectors are likely to 
decrease and what to avoid.  The issue is having knowledge about the rest of the 
economy and understanding what will happen in the whole economy to establish 
where they should direct their focus.  The Council has an idea of some growth 
sectors (e.g. healthcare sector) with growing opportunities but the difficulty is the 
uncertainty across the economy.  And looking at the various academic reports 
they are unable to give a clear message either.  The Council is not operating in an 
environment that can indicate the routes to success.

The Cabinet Member explained over the past 12 months the Council has moved 
from quantifiable outputs and is now talking about qualitative outputs.  These then 
need to be put into the system to deliver.  He disagreed with the view that the 
Olympics legacy is all about land values for Hackney.  

The quantitative outputs from the Olympics in its totality, exceeded the objectives 
set out in 2003 and delivered for Hackney more than any other place in the UK.  
The outputs ranged from railway station (1 billion pound investment into new 
stations) through to jobs and older people being active.  He commented it was 
interesting how the individual outputs have been lost and it was now being 
translated into land values.  Although he agreed it may be more helpful to be able 
to quantifying something to explain benefits.

(vii) Members referred to the 1 billion investment in railway and commented this 
has supported economic development in the borough over the last few 
years, however, this now seems to be creating a series of bottle necks to 
employment growth.  Taking into consideration the proposals for 
development at Morning Lane and that Hackney Downs and Hackney Central 
stations have both seen significant growth in terms of interchange by 
almost 3 million people a year.  Noting also that smaller station like Clapton 
have also seen an increase in use with almost 1.8 million people using the 
station a year but it has no disabled access.  When you consider this 

Page 13



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
information in the context of the Council’s Local Plan and proposals for a 
new Town Centre this raises some concerns.  Members asked what work is 
being undertaken with TfL to support the economic growth from this 
investment and how the council is lobbying about these concerns.

In response the Commission was informed the policy view lobby for the 
investment was all done based on the expectation that further investment would 
happen is as soon as the stations became connected.  The Council expected 2 
things:  
a) That the station infrastructure would grow and expand and increase its 

capacity
b) That developments start to happen around the stations.

The only place where that investment has happened since the operation of the 
new station is Hackney Wick.  Stations like Hackney Downs and Clapton have not 
seen the significant change they expected.  He agreed with the concerns outlined 
by Members and acknowledged some stations were managing the increase 
whereas others in the borough were not fit for purpose particularly in the peak 
hours.  These stations were becoming hazardous to use and a problem.  The 
Council is aware and continues to lobby and politically support the requirement for 
investment.  All of these will need a Hackney Wick solution but this solution 
required investment from the council to get the changes implemented.  Currently 
there is no clarity on when this will happen.

In the meantime the Council is in talks about Crossrail 2.  This will provide a 
station under Dalston and that will have a profound affect on Dalston especially at 
street level including the impact on public realm and public realm capacity as a 
result of the increase in footfall.

7 Recap of the Working in Hackney Event - Future World of Work and Skills 

7.1 The Working in Hackney (WiH) Scrutiny Commission held an information session 
on 29th November 2017 with 4 external speakers from IPPR, Fabian Society, 
Resolution Foundation and Central London Forward.  The event was open to 
stakeholders, residents, the business community and council officers.

7.2 The Chair opened the discussion and outlined the key findings from the event.  
The speakers covered the major trends on the future world of work and skills and 
outlined how this might impact Hackney.

7.3 At the meeting the Commission recapped on the key points they took away and 
the key themes relevant to Hackney.  The Commission was provided with 
assistance in identifying the specific trends that relate to Hackney and noted that 
some of these aligned to national trends.

7.4 Following this event 5 areas the Commission has identified they wish to explore in 
the review are: 

 Self-Employment – There has been a rise in self-employment and in Hackney 
1-5 are self-employed, this is higher than London and UK average.  This 
covers a wide range of things from high skilled to low skilled, portfolio working, 

Page 14



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
part-time and full time working.  The Commission is interested in looking at 
what the Council could be doing to support people who are self-employed.  
This relates to the Council’s relationships building and management work with 
businesses.  They also noted examples of interesting models of support for 
this cohort.

 Polarisation of jobs between high and low skilled – Looking at what comes 
first, the jobs disappearing or the ability to shape what happens.  The 
Commission heard about an interesting example in Manchester where they 
identified that human contact was still desired.  Despite the changes with 
automation in retail jobs they realised other jobs were starting to materialise 
because of the desire for human interaction.  They achieved this through the 
creation of markets. Fostering opportunities for face to face retail.

 Automation – Connected to automation the Chair has come across a 
predication by Future Advocacy who has stated 20,000 jobs are at risk in 
Hackney.  The Chair will explore this prediction with the organisation.

 Housing and land values – the Commission learned Hackney’s ratio of earning 
to rent is ¾ of the average person’s earnings.  The Commission wishes to 
explore the impact of this on local employment.  Interestingly the Commission 
noted that housing and land values is likely to be a trend that will not move or 
change significantly.  This led them to consider the importance of affordable 
work space.

 The potential of local employers – using the Council’s influence to leverage 
that potential.  Hackney does have a range of employers and it needs to 
encourage the use of the apprenticeship levy and employee training to those 
that need to be up skilled.  This topic was also linked to schools.

 Brexit Impact – a number of statistics showing the impact on sectors that 
relate to Hackney such as construction, hospitality and retail.  For example 
over 50% of employees in construction are not from the UK.  The Commission 
wishes to explore the predictions for sectors that are key to Hackney’s 
economy.

7.5 This discussion also highlighted that skills runs through all of the areas and the 
Commission wishes to consider what the design and skills offer should be for 
those areas.

7.6 Members commented that it was easy to get bogged down with analysing past 
data concerning the number of jobs, people employed and making some future 
predictions.  In their view what was needed was an understanding of the key 
sectors in the local economy and how they will operate in the future.  To be able to 
answer questions about Brexit the Council will need to identify its key sectors, how 
they will operate and their dependencies.

7.7 Members commented they also wanted to understand how the outcomes will be 
measured so they can demonstrate to the people of Hackney how they are 
benefiting.  The danger is there will continue to be new opportunities and growth 
but no benefits because the same exclusions still exist.

7.8 Members suggested following:
a) The focus for the short and medium term should be on what the borough has 

to offer to make it more attractive for people to come into the borough and 
spend.

Page 15



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 
b) As the Council identifies the infrastructure needs locally, it should highlight the 

number of jobs for each growth sector for example the number of teachers or 
care workers required.

c) Look at how they can encourage local businesses to investment their profit in 
the borough?

d) If big businesses are using the low cost space ensure they can give back to 
the local community.

7.9 The Head of Employment and Skills informed the Commission the Council’s Policy 
Team is getting stronger in the area of demonstrating outputs.   There is work on 
the Pembury Estate and Young Black Men Project and a theory of change in place 
showing where the council wants to be and what this will feel like for the different 
communities who live in that space.  These are long term pieces of work.

7.10 The officer advised for the Gascoyne 2 estate project the Council will be doing 
similar work to the projects outlined above.  Officers are learning from the 
approaches being taken so they can understand how people are benefiting from 
the support services.  They wish to understand how after 5-10 years what it feels 
like to live on the estate and not just counting the number of jobs residents acquire 
or the numbers through the door.

7.11 For self-employment the Commission was asked if they will be including people 
wanting to set up their own business.  It was pointed out that within this group 
were people who have developed an idea or product which has grossed them a 
big income.  This group of young people have a desire to invest that income in an 
area that has an element of social capitalism and opportunities to invest into the 
community.  The Cabinet Member for Planning, Business and Investment 
suggested the review harnesses entrepreneurism - social capitalism by young 
people in entrepreneurship.  

7.12 There should also include sole trader start-ups in the review.

7.13 The Head of Corporate Programmes pointed out the Council submitted a 
response to the Government’s consultation on the industrial strategy and 
highlighted the proposed strategy did not sufficiently recognise the environment 
and environment sustainability.  The other area lacking was quality work.  
Highlighting what is good quality work and how it should be promoted.  It was 
noted that quality work was not just about pay but the capacity to upskill through 
your work to enable progression.  The officer also commented the Council should 
review what they said the priorities were and see what this means for the Council 
now.

7.14 Members commented there is a gap in the council’s knowledge about the work of 
self-employed people.  Members recognise there is little council officers can do 
about this particularly as they are sole traders and there is not a description about 
their work or trade.  In relation to up skilling if the council has a better 
understanding of its self-employed they would be able to play a more active role in 
support to the self-employed to get access to opportunities to upskill.  Members 
were of the view it would be beneficial to get more of an understanding of what 
sole traders are doing for their business.

7.16 Questions, Answers and Discussion
(i) Members asked how they could contribute to the Council’s strategy work.

Page 16



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

The Chair advised the Commission has an update session with the ECDB in 
February 2018.

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Business and Investment suggested the ECDB 
update scheduled for the next WiH meeting should take the form of a workshop 
style session to enable Members of the Commission to feed in their views to the 
strategy development.

Members asked for information to be provided in advance to help them contribute 
to this session.

ACTION ECDB update scheduled 
for the next WiH meeting 
should take the form of a 
workshop style session.

8 Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission 2017/18 Work Programme 

8.1 Members talked about doing a visit to Here East to look at the new ways of 
working and their approach to workspace rental.

8.2 Members talked about having a focus group with the self employed.

8.3 Members talked about conducting site visits for this review in January 2018.  
Members commented on exploring the following as site visits.
 A visit to Here East to explore the diversity of employer and job roles.  To look 

at a work place that is growing and operating new ways of working.  To see 
new sectors, their new ways of working and informal networks.

 Meet with group of self-employed workers
 Meet with a group of workers from different employment backgrounds.

Members talked about not being limited to Here East but also looking at 
businesses in other parts of the borough e.g. the north of the borough that serves 
the Orthodox Jewish Community and capturing the use of business space in these 
parts of the borough.  To consider how the Council should capture the use of 
business space for future.

The Chair asked Members to bring the knowledge of their ward to feed into the 
review and site visits.

Members agreed to do 2 site visits 1) to visit an employment space (Here 
East) and 2) a focus group with workers.

ACTION Overview and Scrutiny 
Officer to organise 2 site 
visits as requested 
above.

Page 17



Thursday, 14th December, 2017 

Members also commented on exploring the benefits to Hackney when big 
businesses move into the borough bringing in their workers and using their cheap 
business space.

Members also commented on exploring the issue of sub-contracting – looking at 
how big businesses use little businesses.

9 Any Other Business 

9.1 None.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00  - 9.15 pm 

Page 18



Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

5th February 2018

Economic and Community Development Board 
Update

Item No

5
Outline

At the last Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission Meeting Members 
asked about and discussed:
“….further information on the overall strategic intention and key problems the 
council is trying to address with the strategy”

 “…the recruitment practices / processes of employers to provide young 
people with the information about how to get to that position or the job / role.  
Members wanted to know the Council’s strategy and approach to dealing with 
this and the outcomes they expect to see.”

Concluded 
The Economic and Community Development Board (ECDB) update would 
help to provide further insight into the Council’s work and future plans.  
Members of the Commission could feed their views into the current work by 
officers.

The WiH Scrutiny Commission Members will receive information about the 
points below which will include an outline of the work underway:

a) The Council’s strategic approach to economic development and 
employment and skills. 

b) The overarching challenges the Council is trying to address in relation 
to economic development and employment and skills, including how to 
ensure inclusive growth; the availability of local jobs to residents; and 
getting residents into better paid jobs with job progression.

Action
The Commission will discuss and feed in their views to the development work 
of officers for the ECDB.

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

5th February 2018

Future World of Work and Skills – Event Notes

Item No

6
Outline

The world of work will look different in 10 years’ time. Technology, an ageing 
population, automation and artificial intelligence, the ongoing impact of 
globalisation and climate change, and trends such as the gig economy are 
changing work as we know it.

The Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission hosted an event on 29th 
November 2017 to explore the ‘Future World of Work and Skills’ with key note 
speakers.  The Commission, stakeholders and members of the public heard 
from: 

 Daniel Tomlinson from the Resolution Foundation
 Cameron Tait from the Fabian Society
 Bill Davies from Central London Forward
 Joe Dromey from the Institute for Public Policy Research.

This information formed the basis of the scrutiny commission’s review looking 
at the future world of work and skills in the next 5-10 years.

At this event the Commission explored the trends of the changing labour 
market and changing skills system for London and discussed how this will 
impact local economies in London.  The discussion covered:
 Future of London’s economy and the business environment in the next 5-

10 years
 Nature of employment and work
 Skills devolution and the adult skills system
 Increasing polarisation and inequalities in employment (economic and 

social).

Action

The Commission to agree the key areas of the report and site visits for the 
review. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Future World of Work and Skills

The world of work will look different in 10 years’ time. Technology, an ageing 
population, automation and artificial intelligence, the ongoing impact of globalisation 
and climate change, and trends such as the gig economy are changing work as we 
know it.

The Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission hosted an event on 29th November 
2017 to explore the ‘Future World of Work and Skills’ with key note speakers.  The 
Commission, stakeholders and members of the public heard from: 

 Daniel Tomlinson from the Resolution Foundation
 Cameron Tait from the Fabian Society
 Bill Davies from Central London Forward
 Joe Dromey from the Institute for Public Policy Research.

This information formed the basis of the scrutiny commission’s review looking at the 
future world of work and skills in the next 5-10 years.

At this event the Commission explored the trends of the changing labour market and 
changing skills system for London and discussed how this will impact local 
economies in London.  The discussion covered:

 Future of London’s economy and the business environment in the next 5-10 
years

 Nature of employment and work
 Skills devolution and the adult skills system
 Increasing polarisation and inequalities in employment (economic and 

social).

Page 23



2

Future World of Work

Presentations on the Future World of Work from 

 Daniel Tomlinson from the Resolution Foundation
 Cameron Tait from the Fabian Society

Resolution Foundation

Resolution Foundation opened their presentation by highlighting that bold claims 
have often been made about the future sometimes without strong evidence to 
support the statement.

‘Brexit will lead to 300,000 new jobs’

Resolution Foundation outlined 5 reasons for the impact on the future world of work.

 Housing
 Inequalities
 Pay freeze
 Employment rate
 Automation.

Housing

1. Housing is and will remain a big issue due to the gap between the average 
earnings and house prices/rental values in the housing market.

Page 24



3

2. The average earnings for London have not increased substantially since 2005 
compared to house prices and rental values.  This is the reason why housing 
is a big factor.

3. If house prices were to fall there is a still a big gap between the earnings and 
affordability so this will remain a big issue for some time.

4. For Hackney the weekly rent to earnings ratio shows rental prices are 
currently ¾ of the average person’s earning.

5. The places that had high house prices and rental value in 2011 are still the 
locations with the higher values and have seen the biggest increases.  The 
graph below (figure 1) shows there is not an even distribution as expected.

6. Housing will become central to London’s politics. Relevant to work

Figure 1

Inequalities

1. London’s inequality is higher than the inequality for the whole of the UK.  This 
has been the trend since 1996.

2. Inequalities rose steeply in the 1980s and has been flat since.  London has 
always been higher and has had a steeper increase compared to the rest of 
the UK.  It is expected that this inequality will increase further.  The rise is 
expected to be due to the tax cuts and benefits cuts.  Tax cuts at the top and 
benefit cuts at the bottom are disproportionally benefiting higher earners and 
affecting lower income households.

3. Predictions for London is that low income will fall by up to 4% and high 
income will rise slowly.

4. The continuation of the welfare reform will mean people at the low income end 
of the market will struggle to make ends meet.

Page 25



4

Pay Freeze

1. London to see a 17 year pay freeze.  London has seen the deepest pay 
freeze than other cities in the UK.  This is mainly driven by women 
experiencing the deepest pay freeze of all.

2. Although the predication is earnings will rise over the next few years.  It is 
anticipated that earnings will rise slower than previously because they UK’s 
productivity and growth have downgraded.

3. It is forecasted that pay will not return to its peak levels until the mid-2020s.  
So in the short term pay will still be an issue.

Employment rate 

1. The gap has closed between inner and outer London.  London’s strong 
employment has been driven by people born outside the UK who are now 
living in London.  

2. The Government’s policies have helped people who were not so close to the 
labour market get closer and migration has seen a number of people 
migrating moving to London for work.  

3. May see changes to the employment challenge being in outer London as 
opposed to inner London in the future.

Automation

It has been predicted for some time (decades) that robots will take all the work.  
Robots will not take over - if robots were to take over London would see an increase 
in productivity.  To date London’s productivity has been decreasing.

Fabian Society – changing work centre

2 years ago the Fabian Society (FS) and Community Union set up the Changing 
Work Centre.  The Changing Work Centre has been looking at trade union 
membership, industrial change, attitudes to work, and changes to work environment.  
An in-depth piece of work has focused on the retail industry and future of work and 
skills.

1. FS agreed with the impacts highlighted by the Resolution Foundation as the 
drivers to change and acknowledged that technology was a big part of the 
debate.  Additional impacts were globalisations, labour markets integrating, 
demographic change and changing demand too.

2. Agreed with RS there would not be a rise of the robots.  The most recent 
technology debate commenced in 2013 following a report that predicted 40% 
of jobs in the US and 35% of jobs in the UK were at risk of digitalisation over 
the next 20 years.  But this is contested because:

Page 26



5

a) It under estimates the ability of people to adapt to the changing world of 
work and technology.

b) Under estimates productivity improvements from more wide spread 
changes that can increase demand.  

c) A lot of employers not investing in technology.  This could due to not 
having access to finance or the risk of conversion.  The OECD report 
estimates technological at 9% which is in line with previous periods of 
industrial changes.

d) There is also record levels of employment.

3. The FS pointed out the consensus is the world of work and the nature of work 
is changing rapidly and outlined the following risks that can arise as a result of 
the changes to the work environment.

a. Risk of skills dislocation
 We are increasing becoming more connected, people are making 

use of technology in their work, and global demands are changing 
across markets.

 Nesta and other reports highlight a growth in demand for 
interpersonal skills and system skills and a decrease in demand for 
cognitive management skills like accounting and machinery 
operation.

 Many parts of the Education system are not set up for these changes 
in work.  Young people not getting the information they need that will 
allow them to make the transitions and to prepare for future world of 
work or the employability skills that will allow them to get the jobs of 
the future.  FS highlighted that the Resolution Foundation carried out 
a piece of work to identify if young people were changing jobs more 
now than previously.  There is evidence to suggest this is not the 
case: young people are staying in jobs for longer.

 Some industries are experiencing big changes like the Steel 
industry.  We need to make sure people at the sharp end of these 
job changes are able to come into the new jobs and the new growth 
areas.

 It is not just the traditional industries that are experiencing change 
there are other sectors like retail going through changes too.  In 
Hackney 22% of its jobs and 1 in 10 businesses are in retail.  

 The retail sector is experiencing changes and according to the 
British retail consortium 25% of retail jobs could be at risk in the next 
3-4 years from a mixture of automation of tasks, growth of online 
sales and changing customer habits.  The changes being 
experienced are not just on shop floors but the supply chain and 
logistics behind those retailers too.  If these jobs are changing in this 
ways consideration need to be given to how we get people in these 

Page 27



6

jobs and those who work in at-risk occupations into new lines of 
work.

 The UK has a comparatively poor record for adult learning.  The UK 
is behind in comparison to other places European countries for 
lifelong learning.  In 2016 the levels of participation for 25-64 year 
olds for lifelong learning has falling from 20% to 14% since 2010.

b. Widening geographical inequalities - former industrial towns will 
bear the brunt of changes
 A report outlined where digitisation is likely to hit and the 

geographical distribution of the jobs at risk from automation.  The 
report suggests the former industrial towns will bear the brunt of 
those changes.

 We are seeing new tech hubs in the cities and high tech jobs in 
London.  These changes present opportunities to increase 
productivity levels and can have a positive impact on the industries 
around them like hospitality and retail.  Research has identified there 
were more new start-ups in 2015 in one London postcode than 
across all the towns in Yorkshire.

 Politics is being changed by the differing views in towns and rural 
areas compared to more metropolitan areas.  These views are 
coming through in things like the Brexit vote.  

 Londoners who did not vote for Brexit will be more likely to 
experience negative economic impacts from Brexit than people in 
other areas.

c. Rise of self-employment, insecurity and rapid agency at work
 From their research looking at attitudes to jobs and how this has 

changed.  The findings showed very little had changed and broadly 
people were happy in their job.  The biggest change reported was 
feeling of job insecurity.

 A rise in self-employment especially in Hackney where 1 in 5 
workers in Hackney are self-employed this is higher than the 
average for UK and London.  

 The growth of the gig economy and self-employment has led to 
questions about how to protect this group, their access to 
employment rights like permeant employees and access to an 
insurance mechanisms to cover low periods of work.

 There is a role for councils to think about setting up initiative to help 
facilitate an investment vehicle (like insurance) for when they are out 
of work and for other factors too.

Page 28



7

d. Impact on public services
 The impact on housing 
 Changes to the tax platform
 The introduction of driverless cars.

e. The opportunities
 Skills budget given to Mayor of London is being seen an opportunity 

to match skills locally.  London Boroughs can play an important role 
in mapping the current skills and forecasting the skills gaps for their 
area.  

 Big growth in the premium on the human touch – some of the more 
interesting developments like highly digitalised stores like Amazon’s 
people less store, that’s happening yes but also a big growth in the 
human touch – personalised or luxury services.  

 Cited Manchester’s development of a shopping area where they 
redesigned their Christmas market space.  This created local jobs 
and reinvented the space.

 There is an important role for employers and local authority to work 
together.  Working with local employers and them having a dialogue 
with their employees about their job and if they feel their job can be 
automated.  Giving the staff the skills to train for those roles.

 The changes are not all about automation and technology.

Questions, Answers and Comments

In reference to the comments about the hollowing out and filling in and the trend of 
high paid jobs staying and low paid jobs staying.  Taking into consideration where 
Hackney sits on the chart that showed the housing rent to pay ratio and views about 
job insecurity what might this mean for a borough like hackney?

It was pointed out that the Taylor review picked up on the fact that quality of work 
was not just about pay.

In response it was explained there is the hollowing out and filling in and automation 
will take some jobs but history shows that new jobs are created to take their place.  
Although we are seeing a decline in manufacturing jobs new jobs will be created to 
replace them.  There used to be thousands of typists and people working in routine 
manufacturing jobs.  All typist have gone and routine manufacturing replaced with 
automation.  Now there are so many more new jobs that have been created that 
were not around before e.g. social care jobs.  

The key is to focus on labour market policy.  It would be prudent for Hackney to think 
about if local people have the skills needed and to be concerned about the quality of 
the jobs.  Are the jobs rewarding and valuable for people to do.

Page 29



8

One of the challenges going forward in relation to the hollowing out and middle 
management jobs reducing is progression especially in sectors like retail where you 
have quite flat structures.  Limiting the ability of people to move on and move up.  
There are people who go into the retail sector when they are young thinking that they 
will not do this for long time but get trapped in low paid roles for some time.  That is a 
key issue.

The retail sector is a good example of how some of these changes are manifesting in 
the world of work.  People can now go into stores scan their items and have very 
little interaction with staff.  These changes will have an impact on the demand for 
cashiers and the people manning the self-service checkouts.  This rapidly growing 
and changing industry used to allow people to work in their local area and had an 
emphasis on people skills.

It is worth considering where those good quality flexible jobs in local areas will come 
from in the future.  These are jobs have created flexibility for people so they can 
manage other responsibilities like childcare or caring responsibilities by working part 
time.  

The retail sector has been a good creator of flexible local jobs, this is why the decline 
in retail is worrying.  Not just in London but former industrial towns too. 

In the discussion the following questions were asked:

1. What initiatives can local authorities /government implement to help create job 
flexibility?  

2. How do we fill the gap and what do we need to do?
3. What is the future of organised labour (the use of the internet for this type of 

work) and how do we avoid people from being exploited?
4. There were questions about the experience of work and how that will change.  

Considering the gig economy - although this is a very small part of the economy 
– and taking into consideration the potential for growth of this sector is quite 
strong.  Will the changes to the nature of work change the experience of work 
very much, the relationships of who you work for, how you receive your money 
and piece meal work?

5. Bearing in mind Universal Credit is based on people getting money monthly 
however but not all work is paid monthly.  What do you see as the changes of 
the ways of working and the implications of that?

In response to the role of local authorities and the role they can play.  

It was pointed out the Manchester model was cited as an example because of their 
work on retail and the impact it had on the social space.  They started from the point 
of seeing a decline in footfall to venues as people are shopping online more.  This 
impacted on the viability of retail businesses in Manchester.  They started to see 
fewer people going to shopping centres and mixing with people in shopping centres.  
Their response to this problem was to work with employers to revamp retail places 
and investment in the infrastructure to the industrial space.  The space was 

Page 30



9

transformed into a place where people wanted to come – they created a social space 
with the human touch.  It created growth, opportunities and saved retail businesses 
that may not have survived.

In response to the future of organised labour it was explained trade unions are 
having a hard job maintaining memberships because of the rise in smaller work 
places and self-employed workers.  They have seen a huge fall in union membership 
particularly for private sector employees.  There has been some work on the future 
of the private sector and trade unions.  People are more disparate and there are 
fewer opportunities for people in this sector to come together and apply upwards 
pressure on wages, conditions of employment etc.  The recommendations have 
been made that outline what local government and businesses can do.

In response to gig economy, ways of work and what can be done in that space.  

We know that zero hours contracts has risen quite significantly.  The number of 
people on these contracts is 900,000 / 3%.  A rise in different forms of precarious 
work has risen e.g. agency workers permanent agency workers.  The amount of time 
people are spending as agency workers is increasing.  So it is worth thinking about 
how work has changed since the crisis, the different ways and the different type of 
contracts people are on.  People should be on zero hours contracts for no more than 
3 months and if they are still employed after 3 months they should have a right to 
move off them.

It was highlighted that Belgium have a support model recognises people working in 
the gig economy are self-employed and have high and low income.  They have 
created a space to invest in co-operatives for support and services to.   It was 
recommended that councils should review this model.

There has been a rise in part time work and an evening out on the gender mix of 
people doing part time work, it is not predominantly women as it used to be.  This is 
welcomed.  1 in 5 men are in part time work but would like to work full time.  Not sure 
if this is London wide trend or as a result of higher earners wanting to do other things 
outside of work and so cut down their hours.  

Self-employment is another area of notable rise.  It is estimated to be 19% in 
London, this is a bit higher than the rest of the country.

To recap the 4 big changes have been: 

 A rise in part time work
 Agency work
 Zero hours contract
 Self-employment.

Another noticeable change is that precarious works has risen since the 2008 crisis. 

Page 31



10

Before the crisis the statistics showed that 65% were full time jobs (employees) this 
is currently 63%.  Everything is not radically different for employees.  There are 
changes but on the whole not major changes.  The changes are being felt more by 
people in the industries that are experiencing change.

Currently there are 5 million on low pay wages, this problem is growing, so there 
needs to be support for people in low / minimum wage jobs.

As Universal Credit comes inforce and more people are migrated to it.  This will have 
a really big impact on the incentives for people to work.  It will impact on the 
decisions taken in relation to hours worked.  There used to be an incentive in the 
system to work 16 hours or more, this is not the case now as this has been reduced.  
Unless a person gets sanctioned.  It is not productive to sanction people but it would 
be more productive for employers and local businesses to help encourage people to 
progress in terms of hours worked.

Questions were asked about the Government’s health and work programme and if it 
will deliver the quality jobs as expected?

The experts did not thing the new programme would deliver quality jobs.

The audience asked for more information about the Belgium model?

The Belgium model is an insurance mechanism that provides services called Smart 
products.  Basically it is a mechanism for self-employed people to pay into in when 
their income is high and the smart products support them with services when their 
income is low.  Communities and trade unions are looking at this approach. A reports 
by the Royal Society for the encouragement of Arts, Manufactures and Commerce 
(RSA) called Boosting the standard of living for the self-employed made 
recommendations about this model.

Enquires were made about self-employment and if this type of employment could fill 
the employment flexibility gap and the role for Government in this?

In response it was advised an ideal world self-employment allows a person to 
choose when they work, when they get paid and how much they get paid.  However 
this type of work is not a direct comparison to the flexibility on offer through retail 
work.  The experts cautioned against the view that self-employment could replace 
the flexibility offered by retail jobs.

People expressed the most important thing was job security and the ability to 
progress in their job.  It was highlighted if you are self-employed you do not have 
this.

Businesses are expanding the use of self-employment contracts but this model is 
business decisions.  Choosing this type of business model is driven by cost margins 
and maintaining their market share.  Businesses are using the networks of self-
employed workers more.  If this is genuine and not cost related it is flexible working.

Page 32

https://www.thersa.org/globalassets/pdfs/reports/boosting-the-living-standards-of-the-self-employed-.pdf


11

The experts were asked for their predictions on what will be different in the next 5 
years for example self-service tills, the IPad, changes behaviour and the way we 
work etc.

Their views on the older workers.  Workers who are should have retired but still work 
and are choosing to work past retirement age.

We are already seeing more people choosing to work longer.  There is a rise in 
employment for people past retirement age.  Older people choosing to stay in work 
for longer will help to reduce ill health later in life so this should be encouraged.

The officer from FS agreed that older workers in work is changing.  Need to improve 
ratio of people in work and out of work, to keep skills and the ability to transition in 
the labour market.

Final thoughts

The officer from RF advised his person predications were we might notice the costs 
for items currently being delivered cheaply go up.  This is because people will 
become more aware of why they can get things cheaply and come together to 
change this.  Giving unions more power.  

In summary:

 A revitalisation of trade unions in the private sector with enough strength to 
see change

 The cost of things being delivered cheaply going up

The officer from FS advised his person predications were retail would reach a 
greater divergence in high and low service.  For low service there will be an increase 
of things like the amazon dash hub where something just gets delivered to you.  
Walking into a shop and scan everything with very little human contact.

More roll out of things like smart fridges that automatically tells you when to replace 
stuff in the fridge.  That will change how we shop and in turn this may become 
cheaper.  

For people who can afford it there will be the higher end retailers providing service 
and goods of a higher quality.  More divergence in the quality of goods and services.

 

Page 33



12

Future World of Skills

Presentations on the Future World of Work from 

 Bill Davies from Central London Forward
 Joe Dromey from the Institute for Public Policy Research

Institute for Public Policy Research (IPPR)

The presentation covered the following:

 The challenges with skills system
 The issues that will shape the future of the skills system
 The key reforms the Government are proposing to implement to address the 

issues.

Challenges with current skills system

1. Over centralisation – The skills system is currently highly centralised with 
little opportunity for local authorities to adapt the system to meet the needs of 
local learners, employer & employees.

2. Under funding – Further education (FE) hit hard by austerity.  FE has 
received a 40% cut to the Adult Education Budget (AEB) and it is half the size 
it was in 2010 – held flat in cash terms.  FE is starting to see the implications 
from the restrictions in funding and the impact on participation.  

The Government introduced advance learner loans in 2012 these are similar 
to student loans for FE.  Since learner loans were introduced participation in 
FE fell by a 1/3.  It is thought the advance learner loans have suppressed 
participation and limited participation.

3. There has been too much on boosting supply and not enough on the 
demand for skills – A literature review 11 years ago set ambitious targets for 
improvements in qualification.  The Government has hit the targets for NVQ 
level 4 (just below degree level) and is not far off NVQ level 2 target (GCSE 
level).  

The percentage of people in the workforce with degree level qualifications has 
increased 11% however productivity over the same period has only increased 
by 1%.  The number of people with GCSE qualifications has increased by 
10% but productivity has not improved and wages have decreased.  There 
has been too much focus on improving the number of qualifications and not 
enough attention paid to what qualifications are needed in the labour market.  
The Government has a 3 million apprenticeship target but has not focused on 
what they need to deliver for these qualification to meet employer’s needs so 
that individuals can progress.

Page 34



13

4. Poor matching of supply and demand – the skills system currently is not 
effective in meeting employer demand which is why we have this current 
perplexing problem of increasing qualifications and skills gaps for some areas.  
This is relevant to the choices made at school and university but also to FEs 
as they are output funded rather than outcomes for the courses they provide.  
It does not cover the number of people they get into employment, the 
numbers that progress to FE study further or how their wages increase 
thereafter.  

5. Lack of high quality vocational provision - For too long the incentives in 
the system encourage providers to provide high volume and low level 
provision.  This provision does not lead to further study, meet the needs of 
employers or allows people to progress.  The vast majority of FE provision is 
delivered at low level.  

It was reported that degree level apprenticeships represent 0.03% of 1% of 
apprenticeships – the reality is there are not many degree level 
apprenticeships.  Most apprenticeships are at low level.  There are too many 
low level apprenticeships that do not necessarily lead to higher level provision 
or earnings.

6. There is low level participation in lifelong learning and it is unequal – 
The people who would most benefit from lifelong learning and should be 
participating in lifelong learning e.g. low level qualifications, those who left 
school early, low pay occupational groups and low social economic groups 
are the least likely to participate.  Statistically it is the educational ‘haves’ who 
are participating in lifelong learning, and not the educational ‘have nots’ as 
required.  Employers are more likely to see a business case and future 
investing in the skills of workers with higher education than their staff with 
lower qualifications (the skilled than the unskilled staff).

Future of the skills system and the potential impacts 

1. Brexit 
This is a risk for 2 reason:
a) The potential competition and changes this will bring to the economy 
(unknowns) 
b) Meeting replacement demand - The percentage of European Union (EU) 
workers in London is far higher than the rest of the UK - although it has not 
been confirmed if the current EU workers will have to leave the UK after 
Brexit.

The big questions surrounding the Government plans to stop the freedom of 
movement to the UK are:
a) Will the Government introduce a more restrictive system for migration? 

Page 35



14

b) How the skills gap - that is currently being filled by EU workers - will be 
met?  

In relation to the migration policy IPPR advised there were releasing a report 
imminently on construction – this report identified that a 1/3 of construction 
workers were born in the EU and, fewer than half of the construction workers 
were born in the UK.  This shows that the majority of new workers entering the 
sector are born in the EU.  If half the supply is cut how will we train the new 
construction workers needed.

2. Automation - Automation will transform the labour market.

It is anticipated that robots will be in the form of a colleague and will work 
alongside workers, transforming occupations and roles.  People will need to 
retrain to stay relevant.  

Technological revolution have always created more jobs than destroys.  
However in this process some jobs will be lost.  The key message to note is 
while there is likely to be a net increase in jobs there will be some job losses.

This will impact the people who are not ready to transition.  Therefore 
consideration needs to be given to how the skills system is set up to support 
change.

Key changes to skills system

1. Apprenticeship levy and wider apprenticeship reforms – Apprenticeships 
were brought in in April to reverse the decline of employer training.  
Employers in the UK invest only half of the EU average in training.  The levy is 
an attempt to boost employer investment and an attempt to mask government 
cuts and to shift the burden onto employers.

London has a fewer number of apprenticeships per capita than any region in 
the Country.  The apprenticeship levy is half a percent of an organisations 
payroll bill.  In terms of the impact on London, the apprenticeship levy is going 
to raise a vast amount of money.  Experience shows that employers in 
London are far less likely to use the apprenticeship levy unless all 
stakeholders do something about it.  In London just 1 in 6 use their levy.  

London does have a demand for apprenticeship from employers and 
employees and there is a huge opportunity for the use of the apprenticeship 
levy fund.  However traditionally there is low employment of apprenticeships 
locally.

Wider reforms to the system include putting employers in charge of the 
content for apprenticeships.  Currently the process makes no provision for the 
voice of the employees.

Page 36



15

There has been a decline of 59% in apprenticeship starts in the first quarter 
following the introduction of the apprenticeship levy.  

There is a big role for Government, GLA and local authorities to ensure local 
employers are using their apprenticeship fund.

2. Post 16 Skills Plan for T Level (technical education) – the problem has 
been the vast array of vocational qualifications available.  This volume of 
information presents a problem for policy makers let alone employers. 

Following the Lord Sainsbury review in 2016 the Government outlined 15 
technical pathways aimed at achieving the following:
a) to bring occupations in similar areas together
b) set a common core standard (defined by employers themselves)
c) designed to bring simplicity and rigour to the system.

The first 3 T levels for construction, digital and education and childcare will be 
rolled out from 2019 based on these technical pathways T levels will be an 
alternative to A Levels.

3. Institute for Technology - there is a real lack of high quality, high level 
provision to deliver provision in a local area focused on specific industries.

4. Devolution of the Adult Education Budget to GLA – The devolution may 
be delayed but it presents an opportunity for the GLA to make better use of 
the AEB and to focus on outcomes and outputs.  From 2019/20 but may be 
delayed.  

Central London Forward

CLF covers 12 inner London boroughs including Hackney.  CLF is a Board tasked 
with representing the economic interests of the 12 inner London boroughs.  This 
group is run collectively by the Chief Executives and Borough Leaders.  They make 
collective decisions and present these decisions to Government and external actors 
(local businesses).

CLF commissioned research to review the economy and skills.

CLF region has been a jobs machine for the last 6/7 years is responsible for a large 
proportion of the jobs growth, output and employment in London.  In particular the 
growth of highly skilled occupations.  

Central London is being seen as a core aspect of future employment and tax 
receipts for London.  The job growth represents 2/3rds of London’s job growth and 1/5 
of the jobs growth in the UK.  Performance is linked to 2 primary things. 

Page 37

http://www.gatsby.org.uk/uploads/education/reports/pdf/report-of-the-independent-panel-on-technical-education.pdf


16

a) A great place to do business.  London is recognised globally - in the top 10 if 
not the top 20 - as the place to do business.  

b) Central London is the economic hub for greater London and has specialist 
sectors such as high value finance, banking etc.  London is the second most 
visited city in the world, a magnet for people and it hosts a number of the 
world’s leading universities; creating an enormous amount of jobs.  London 
has the capacity to draw in a pool of skilled national and international labour.

The CLF region faces a number of structural challenges.

The CLF Board is keen to highlight that some local residents have missed out on the 
opportunities created, a significant core has not participated not participated in the 
growth this regions has experienced.  The proportion of people earning below the 
London living wage has risen sharply and it is not expected that this trend will 
reverse any time soon.  It is therefore a priority for CLF to try to reconnect economic 
growth to some of the residents who have missed out in the last decade to address 
the issue of low wage growth and the polarising the labour market.  

Rising land values are warping, job opportunities, the shape of the labour market and 
the way businesses operate is impacting on London’s demography.

After reviewing the statistics for net migration and exit for London there is a sharp net 
decrease in the number of people aged 30-45 years leaving London – they are 
leaving London in big numbers.  There are a couple of reasons for this but primarily 
the driver is the housing market; the cost of properties and the type of properties.  
The properties needed are affordable 2/3/4 bed properties for a growing family.  
These properties do not exist because London is not building the volume of 
properties needed.  

CLF’s hour glass labour market is more polarised than London and the UK.  There 
are proportionally fewer mid skilled job opportunities in London than in the UK and 
fewer mid skilled workers too.  Based on projections it is anticipated the polarisation 
is going upwards and this a huge problem for people entering the labour market 
without the skills they need.

The growth of jobs in CLF has centres around the higher and lower end job market.  
These are specialised professional services e.g. financial sector.  From the work 
carried out by Metro Dynamics they noticed a geographical concentration of jobs 
growth.  Primarily the growth was identified to be around the high value industries 
and low level industries that support them.

The demographic profile of people in work 

CLF has low levels of employment for people with no qualifications and low levels for 
adults with mid skill qualifications to.  This is a huge problem for people with A Levels 
or AS Levels.

The other area of challenge is progression.  Research by Spencer Thompson 
(working at CAB) explored how people step from low / mid skilled to high skilled.  It 

Page 38



17

found that for London, in particular, people do not make those successive steps 
because of the polarised labour market.  It is difficult for people in low skilled jobs to 
progress into high skilled roles.  It is not practical to say you do not have the required 
skills and you will go out there to get the skills you need, currently our labour market 
might not service those aspirations.

Employer requirements of qualifications will intensify where jobs require high level 
qualifications (level 4 or above).  It is 58% now and this is expected to rise to 68% by 
2036.

CLF Facts

The number of FE courses started by adults aged 19 and over has dropped.  It is 
down by 58,000 since 2012/13.  This is slightly lower than the London average.

FE provision 

In CLF is heavily weighted towards the low level – level 3 and below.  22% of 
provision is delivered at level 3 or above compared to 28% across the rest of the UK.  
CLF predominately provides courses that are below level 2 excluding Maths and 
English.  This provision is driven by demand.

Apprenticeships

There is low demand for apprenticeships from employers and prospective 
apprenticeship takers too.  This is an area that needs to improve especially in light of 
the apprenticeship levy.

Work based training

Employees in central London are more likely to receive work related training while on 
the job, however, access to this is polarised.  If you are at the high end of the labour 
market you are likely to get training if you are at the low end you are not likely to get 
training.

Higher Education 

CLF has high levels of higher education qualifications and a high proportion of 
people in central London go onto higher education - 40% compared to 34% as the 
national average.  However, young people in CLF are less likely to go onto the top 
universities.

The system seems to be partly to blame for this because it has the following:

 A lack of outcome focus for adult education provision
 Inadequate advice and guidance on what provision would be useful for central 

London
 A lack of funding with diminishing access.

Devolution is an opportunity to address the areas mentioned above.  But this is an 
unfunded mandate to meet increasing need.  Devolution presents an opportunity for 
central London boroughs, employer and providers to rebuild the system. 

Page 39



18

The audience was informed the Greater London Authority (GLA) had launched a 
consultation on the skills strategy for London.  The consultation is open until mid-
January and urged boroughs and attendees to feed in their views.  A consultation 
event would be held on 18th December 2017 for boroughs, providers and residents.  
At the event the GLA would be presenting their proposals for the GLA skills strategy.  
This will consider what this means for CLF and what CLF boroughs need to do 
together to address the skills gaps identified.

CLF has an Employment and Skills Board, this Board reviews the information and 
sets the work priorities.  The Board have identified the following to feedback to the 
GLA for their skills strategy: 

 To focus on an outcomes based approach – The skills system in London 
needs to be supported and funded to be more closely aligned to employment 
to secure jobs in the local economy both now and in the future.  Through the 
provision of advice and guidance to steer demand through funding to support 
a more appropriate supply.

 Focus on CLFs key sectors – a number of key sectors have been identified by 
the Board these are financial services, tourism, tech and also the critical role 
of adult social care.  People are getting older and their health needs are 
becoming complex.  With the change in demographics CLF is does not 
currently have the skills in place to deliver this.

 There are a host of sectors that will be impacted by Brexit from the loss of 
economic migrants from the EEA and the rest of the world and this is not just 
construction but many more.

From the GLA strategy they want to increase the number of high quality 
apprenticeships.  To target and narrow the gap between central London and the 
London average.

Questions Answers and Comments

The audience pressed for Hackney specific information and asked the speakers for 
their views on anything specific from their presentation they wished to highlight is 
relevant to Hackney.

London is very distinct from the UK and CLF drives that distinction.  Central 
London’s economy looks different from outer London.  Outer London looks similar to 
the rest of the UK.  Analysis of the statistics by borough highlighted that Hackney 
and Lewisham some other boroughs in the south and east of the CLF region were 
slightly behind in the concentration of high level skills.  The demand for high level 
skills in hackney seem to be more polarised.  There are people with high level and 
low level qualifications but with very little in between.  It is anticipated this have been 
driven by the boroughs change in demographic over recent years.

It was pointed out to some extent the driving growth in Hackney has been 
international migration of EU residents with high qualifications.  In relation to Brexit 
the following questions were raised by the audience:

Page 40



19

a) If they were anticipating contraction in key sectors in the London, central 
London and may be hackney with particular reference to finance, 
construction, hospitality and retail?

b) The positives of from Brexit e.g. driving wage growth the ability to do 
something different about skills gap?

c) Do you think there is work that national and local government can do to 
influence policy in highlighting the value of working in the construction sector 
improving the rights and security of jobs?

d) Considering the low skilled sectors, are these the types of sectors we want to 
encourage residents to work in taking into consideration the concerns about 
the quality of jobs?

In response the audience was informed there is increased nervousness by 
businesses about Brexit.  The City of London tracks businesses considering leaving 
central London post Brexit.  Businesses are nervous about the loss of pass porting 
rights, loss of access to workers and VISA policy changes.  This anxiety is affecting 
businesses’ behaviour.  Any changes to the VISA policy will have a dramatic effect 
especially on replacement labour.  This will lead to a contraction in the number of 
jobs available.  Changes to the VISA policy will affect a large number of sectors.  It is 
not just construction and finance that are at risk but sectors like leisure & tourism and 
hospitality too.  It is anticipated that most sectors could lose 20 / 30% of their 
workers.  

There is a large proportion of people with high level qualifications in low paid jobs.  
Employers are currently used to paying people with high qualifications a low wage.  
The question is, is there a possibility of people with higher qualification and low skills 
transitioning to high skills.  This would require employers to change their behaviour 
and employ people with lower skills than they do currently.

Convincing people to enter the construction sector is difficult especially to the gender 
minority.  At the last review this was 9-1.

After conducting interviews with employers from a cross section of sectors a 
reoccurring theme was the view they all faced a threat from Brexit and increased 
restrictions on immigration.  This included the low skilled and low paid sectors which 
have a large reliance on EU workers.  This is because a number of EU workers work 
below their qualification level.

In terms of what employers will do.  Some argue they will increase wages (a key 
argument from the Brexit side) but the problem is there is very little slack in the 
labour market.  Employment levels in the UK are at a record high but despite high 
employment levels there is still low productivity and high inactivity.  Efforts by 
successive Governments to reduce work in activity - this includes welfare reform and 
the offer of welfare to work / support to work - has been poor and the development of 
support into work for people with a long term health or disability have been abject 
failures.  There is very little slack in the London labour market that is available to 
employers to replace demand post Brexit.

Page 41



20

In terms of construction a 1/3 of workers in London’s construction sector were born 
in the EU and 20% were born in the rest of the world.  Less than half of the current 
construction workers in London are born in the UK.  IPPR modelled the current non 
EU migration policy on the current EU workers in the UK to assess the impact of 
policy change for EU Workers.  They found that 7% of EU workers would be eligible 
under that system.  Potentially this could reduce future migration to London by half; 
that is very significant for this sector.  When employers in construction were asked 
about their plans the least likely response was to train.  It was highlighted that 
employers are panicking and lobby Government but equally they are not putting 
plans in place to train people to fill the gap.

In reference to Brexit and the skills gap for areas like London there will be a big role 
for the GLA to work with employers to boost the training provision for these sectors.

Queries from the audience were raised about the following:

a) What do you think local government can do to help FE colleges and training 
providers to work with local businesses to make sure they are providing 
training courses that enable them to fill the jobs of the future and will stop 
young people going on courses that are generic and not equipping them for 
the jobs created?

b) In terms of the issues of changing employers.  Who is the most appropriate 
stakeholder to change the behaviour of employers and what is the role for 
local authorities in this sphere?

c) In relation to the discussion about the polarised labour market we have talked 
about upskill and the delayering to flatter structures.  Is the Government or 
other stakeholders in danger of generating a supply to the centre of that 
labour market and creating people with aspirations for that central London 
labour market with no jobs i.e. providing a supply with no demand? 

d) In relation to property prices in Central London there is a notable change that 
these prices are spreading to locations like Hackney, resulting in the price per 
square foot for rents to increase substantially.  This will means that 
businesses in central London need to be high value and generating a high 
level of income - high performing.  From the effects of this the questions are:

 where will middle jobs reside? 
 what will they be? 
 will they naturally migrate to outer London?

Structurally London is changing.  Can the Mayor of London propose anything 
in the London Plan to change this so London does not end up having people 
in a labour market servicing very high value services and properties?  

e) Is the property market generating the polarisation of business and skills in the 
London market?

In response to the queries it was advised there are some actions Local Authorities 
can take. 

Page 42



21

1) Information, advice and guidance - To have better careers provisions in schools to 
inform young’s people’s choices and the decisions they make about courses for 
future career options.  It was acknowledge careers guidance and advice is an area 
this is likely to have been scaled back during austerity and this provision is now 
provided by non-experts.  It is noted that increasingly this is being provided by 
teachers who do not have knowledge or experience of the vocational route to 
understand the careers system.  Local authorities should review this area.

2) Local labour market information and the provision locally – As careers advice and 
guidance is a non-statutory function for councils this likely to be an areas that has 
been reduced during austerity.  However councils should be making sure information 
about the labour market is available to schools and educational training providers 
about employers on the changing demand for skills and steering the output from 
local providers to match local employment needs.  

3) The soft powers / influence of councils – Use the council’s influence to get 
employers and providers in a room together to talk.  In light of the expectation that 
many businesses paying the apprenticeship levy will not use it.  If councils have local 
businesses paying the apprenticeship levy they should encourage these local 
businesses to spend their levy on apprenticeships and consider how they can 
support businesses to use this fund locally.  Connecting businesses with local people 
who wish to do apprentices and training providers who can help them spend the levy 
for the benefit of the business and local people.

4) Lobby the GLA to ensure devolution helps to create an outcomes focused skills 
system - There is the metaphor ‘throwing good money after bad’.  The current skills 
system is set up to encourage low skilled low level work.  It’s futile to complain about 
the system when the system is geared towards getting people into the nearest job 
and providing low skill opportunities.  The policies being developed need to deal with 
land values as this is forcing the middle level workers to migrate out of the capital.  If 
the provision of support to obtain skills remains at level 2, it is unlikely that we will 
have an hour glass labour market.  

To get a different looking labour market will need a training provision that enables a 
person to move from low level skills to the level of skills required for the job.  There 
are things that can be done to help with progression like helping employers to 
change their thinking so that they do not see the need to employ a person with a 
degree for those high skilled roles but become willing to take on a person with their A 
level or AS level.

In the discussion there were points raise about commissioning and procurement.  A 
provider in the audience highlighted that contracts were being given to prime 
contractors despite them not having the understanding or expertise to do the work.  
Whereas small contract providers have the understanding, knowledge and 
experience to provide the service but are not awarded the contracts.  In his view it 
was a concern that providers with no experience were being given contracts to do 
the work.  In his view it would be would more beneficial to give the contract to the 

Page 43



22

providers that has the experience locally particularly in the case of information advice 
and guidance (IAG) for young people at school.  

In the discussion there were points raise by an employer about why they use of zero 
hours contracts.  An employer in the audience explained for his business in the 
hospitality sector they use zero hour’s contracts.  This enables the business to 
contract or expand if they have a good or bad month particularly with operating in 
Shoreditch- one of the biggest night time economy areas.  In these instances they 
cut back (this includes labour costs) to reduce the costs to the business and the 
impact on profits.  The business paid the London Living Wage (LLW) to try to attract 
experienced staff.  It was pointed out that in the hospitality sector it was hard to find 
people who want to do the work (bar / restaurant) and who have the experience.   In 
his experience people with higher level qualifications have done this type of work 
because it pays the bills.

In the discussion reference was made to the current policies boosting skills but not 
boosting demand on the employer side.  The speakers were asked to describe what 
would boosting demand would look like?

The Chair asked for thoughts on the squeeze to employers from paying the London 
Living Wage and the impact on a business’s profit margin?

The draft London Skills Strategy is seeking views on how the skills provision should 
be provided in the future.  Participants at the event were encouraged to submit their 
views to the consultation and do the same for the CLF Skills Strategy too.

In relation to the comments about the LLW a key driver for this increase is the cost of 
housing.  The current land values are distorting the London labour market, how it 
behaves and the challenges employers are facing.  It is a complex web of drivers 
that cannot be dealt with at the same time for example the skills gap is one driver 
that needs a particular policy approach.  There will not be one policy approach to 
solve all.

The Government is planning to issue a document or strategy on careers so there is 
acknowledgement that this is area that needs development (from primary school 
through to the provision of advice available for adults on future career options).

Successive Governments have focused on setting targets covering the numbers of 
qualifications for skills because it is measureable e.g. they have a 3 million target for 
apprenticeships.  Having these targets has not resulted in an increase in productivity 
and harder economic outcomes to go with the increase in supply of qualifications.  

The Government is trying to make the skills system more employer focused and the 
idea behind this is to make sure the qualifications being delivered are economically 
valuable.  This should ensure the system meets the demands of employers.  
Although there are some concerns about implementation.  It was suggested we 
should move away from the view that there will always be bad jobs at the lower end 
of the job market.  A review by Zeynep Ton looking at the ‘Good Job Strategy’ in the 
US economy has highlighted how some low skilled employers have pursued a 

Page 44



23

different business model for business success.  In the USA a number of employers 
in the low wage sectors like retail and hospitality have pursued a business model 
which has implemented high levels of training.  This includes cross training staff and 
high levels of employee discretion to invest in technology for their roles.  This has 
resulted in a high skilled workforce, improved retention, better pay and higher levels 
of productivity.  

For the UK Ikea was cited as an example of an employer paying the LLW and 
through creative job redesign have succeed in creating quality jobs in the low skilled 
low paid sector.  

Final comments from the audience noted the following points.

There are challenge with how much time local businesses have available to work 
with local colleges and schools as suggested.  There is also challenges for the self-
employed about the time they have available for them to up skill.

There was discussion about the opportunities the devolution of adult skills to the 
GLA will create for a slightly more active State in up skilling of the workforce and in 
better working with employers, particularly in the context of ‘in work’ training?

Comments received from the self-employed have highlight that up skilling is a real 
issues due to making time to upskill.

Many employers need employees who can hit the ground running the cost of the 
time and training is a real challenge for smaller businesses.

There were comments about how the revamping of qualifications e.g. the carpentry 
(there are several different routes to become a carpenter) to suit the employer 
demand has led to the deskilling of the trade and the qualification course becoming 
boring.  This has resulted in a devaluing the qualification.  There were questions 
about the opportunities, in these instances, to lobby for change back to the old 
qualification system.

There were comments from attendees about the challenges with finding employees 
with the right attitudes and the British born expressing a sense of entitlement to 
certain jobs.  Many small employers have employed EU nationals because they have 
the work attitude and aptitude and get on with the job.  Many small employers have 
found that British born people do not have the right attitude or aptitude or wish to get 
on with the job.  

The audience discussed the construction sector and the potential big impact 
following Brexit.  Reference was also made to other sectors like customer services, 
hospitality and retail who also employ and rely on the employment of EU nationals.

Comments also centred around how the attitudes of young people could be changed 
to give them the soft skills needed – this applied to adults too - and how collectively 
stakeholders should work together to resolve the issue.  It was highlighted that going 
on a course does not provide the solution.  There is also the need for emotions 
intelligence too.  There are traditional routes to finding employment and non-

Page 45



24

traditional factors such as your ability, your energy and aptitude.  These are all soft 
skills that are important too not just your CV or linked in profile.

There was discussion about aspirations and the loss of basic skills like 
communication.  Comments were raised about the being in low paid work but having 
a sense of what you are aspiring to achieve.  In addition there is the issue soft skills 
like communication and basic interaction is getting lost due to the increase in digital 
use and how informal communication is becoming the formal use of communication 
for young people.

Closing comments and predictions from the speaker for the future of skills in the next 
5 years.

In response to soft skills and attitude to work.  There is research by the Gatsby 
Foundation which highlights that 4 points of contacts (quality contact) with employers 
during a young person school years means they are 80% less likely to become 
NEET.  This is contact with employers in the form of work experience or employers 
coming into to speak about their profession.  This contact was relevant to children 
from working class backgrounds more than children from middle class backgrounds.  
Children from the middle class background are likely to come in contact with people 
who work in a variety of professions.  Children from working class are less likely to 
have these encounters.  Working class children are more likely to come in contact 
with employers or professions at school.  This helps them to understand the huge 
opportunities available in the economy.  

In response to the points about self-employment and skills training.  The 
Government is moving towards an employer led system to stimulate employer 
participation whilst at the same time public funding has been cut.  This will become 
an issue for self-employed people or people who have no employer because they 
will be no one to invest in them.  There are a number in this group that have high 
qualifications and skills but there is also a significant number of in this group that are 
on low pay with low skilled working in insecure job roles.  These people will have no 
access to training or progression opportunities.  

In response to active state there is an opportunity to influence how active you want 
the GLA to be - this is not a calcified position.  Their position is not fixed particular if 
the requirement is for an outcomes focused system.  

Local authorities in London should look to hold employers to account for the 
spending on their apprenticeship fund.  In addition to linking up young people and 
other people interested in apprenticeships with employers.  Making clear the 
standard of invest you expect employers to make in their workforce.  

In response to predictions IPPR suggested the Government will achieve its 3 million 
target.  

Page 46



Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

5th February 2018

Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission
Work Programme for 2017/18

Item No

7
Outline

Attached is the work programme for the Working in Hackney Scrutiny 
Commission for 2017/18.  

This is a working document that is regularly updated.

Action

The Commission is asked for any comments, amendments or suggestions for 
the work programme.

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission
Rolling Work Programme June 2017 – April 2018
All meetings take pace at 7.00 pm in Hackney Town Hall unless stated otherwise on the agenda.  This rolling work programme report is updated and 
published on the agenda for each meeting of the Commission.  

Dates Proposed Item Directorate and officer 
contact

Comment and Action

The Council’s Approach to 
Economic and Community 
Development

Corporate Strategy 
Chief Executive Directorate
Stephen Haynes

Presentation about work strands and Council’s 
current work 

Employment and Skills Corporate Strategy
Chief Executive Directorate
Stephen Haynes

Presentation about Employment and Skills Service

Thurs 15th June 
2017

Papers deadline: Mon 7th 
June

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

To agree a review topic and discussion items for the 
work programme.

Support to Local Businesses Various Invitation sent out to local businesses and council 
service areas that support local businesses

Wed 5 July 2017
Papers deadline: Mon 26th 
June 2017

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

To agree a review topic and discussion items for the 
work programme.

P
age 49



Dates Proposed Item Directorate and officer 
contact

Comment and Action

Employment Support and the 
integration of Employment 
Support Initiatives 

Chief Executive Directorate
Corporate Strategy Team 
and Public Health

Employment support for people who are not job 
ready.  Information about the Hackney Works 
service and future direction of the service provision.
Integrated working.  A look at how the different 
employment support initiatives in the Borough work 
together or could work together.

Mon 18 Sept 2017
Papers deadline: Wed 6th 
Sept

Local Economic Assessment Chief Executive Directorate
Policy and Partnerships 
Team

A presentation on the most recent data for Hackney 
covering population, work and the economy.

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Commission to review their work programme to 
make changes or suggest changes.

Future World of Work and Skills 
Discussion in Hackney

Chief Executive Directorate
Policy and Partnerships 
Team

This evidence session is to give the Working in Hackney Scrutiny 
Commission and the Council’s Economic and Community 
Development Board information about the changing labour 
market, changing skills environment, data and trends.  This 
information will be drawn from think tanks and academics.  From 
the information presented we want to identify:

 What London’s economy will look like in the next 10 
years?

 The nature of employment – hub and spoke model, 
working from home, co-location, self-employment etc.

 Sectoral trends – what the industries will look like based 
on trends, external drives, Brexit, technology 
(automation)

 Skills devolution and the impact the funding changes  
 Inequalities – The potential for widen inequalities from 

the changes to employment and skills.

Wed 29 Nov 2017

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Commission to discuss the evidence heard and 
next phase.

P
age 50



Dates Proposed Item Directorate and officer 
contact

Comment and Action

Cabinet Member Question Time – 
Cabinet Member for Planning, 
Business and Investment 

Mayor’s Office  Economic Strategy
 Evaluation, measures and identification of 

success 
 Balance of job types and benefits of large 

corporate organisations moving into the 
borough.

 Key commitments and deliverables by May 
2018.

Cabinet Member Question Time – 
Cabinet Member for Employment 
Skills and Human Resources

Mayor’s Office  Jobs strategy and the assessment of success
 Evaluation, measures and identification of 

success
 Key commitments and deliverables by May 

2018.

Thurs 14 Dec 
2017

Papers deadline: Mon 4th 
Dec

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Commission to review their work programme to 
make changes or suggest changes.

Economic and Community 
Development Board Update

Chief Executive Directorate
Corporate Strategy Team

Update on the Board’s current work and strategy 
development.

Future World of Work and Skills 
Event Notes

Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Notes from the Future World of Work and Skills 
Discussion in Hackney on 29th November 2017

Mon 5 Feb 2018

Papers deadline: Wed 24th 
Jan

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Commission to review their work programme to 
make changes or suggest changes.

P
age 51



Dates Proposed Item Directorate and officer 
contact

Comment and Action

Inequity at Work Chief Executive Directorate
Corporate Strategy Team
Policy and Partnerships 
Team

Wed 14 Mar 2018

Papers deadline: Fri 2 Mar

Evidence Session for long review TBC TBC

Work Programme Discussion Overview and Scrutiny
Chief Executive Directorate 
Tracey Anderson

Commission to review their work programme to 
make changes or suggest changes.

PURDAH
NO MEETINGS

April 2018

P
age 52


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes , 14/12/2017 Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission

	5 Economic and Community Development Board Update
	6 Future World of Work and Skills - Event Notes
	CDM-#19030191-v1-WiH_Event_notes

	7 Working in Hackney Scrutiny Commission 2017/18 Work Programme
	WiH_Work_Programme_2017-18


